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PRO C E E 0 I N G S

2 JUDGE SIPPEL: We're on the record. There are --

3 Ms. Barr, you're in the courtroom, I see that, but we do have

4 some preliminary matters we'd like to see if we can resolve

5 before you take the stand again. Has anything been done with

6 respect to the, the format -- I'm going to refer to this as

7 the formatted evidence of Mrs. Covington.

8 MR. HOWARD: Yes, Your Honor. We have copies of it.

9 We got them last evening after close of business and we have

10 not produced them to the other side yet. We wanted to make it

11 clear on the record that this was done strictly under order

12 and we wanted to make clear that you understand what we were

13 doing, what this evidence consists of. Basically, these are

14 materials that were presented by Ms. Barr, provided to -- by

15 Ms. Barr to counsel and based on MS. Covington's notes. Then

16 the -- there are other drafts of these documents that are in

17 our possession that were done when we -- in gathering

18 additional information from discussions with Ms. Covington,

19 but as I understood the scope of your order that it was

20 basically to get to whatever was the next document in the

21 chain from the, from the calendar and the notes to this, and

22 this is what reflects those notes, so if -- that's what we

23 what we're prepared to discuss. I'm sorry we do not have

24

25

Bates stamped copies of it right now, but we do have that and

we're getting Bates stamped copies which should be delivered
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1 to them -- to the Court as soon as they're ready.

----.- 2 JUDGE SIPPEL: All right. So what you have is you

3 have the, you have the formatted information that was provided

4 you from MS. Barr?

MR. HOWARD: Yes.

MR. HOWARD: Yes, Your Honor. There is one thing I

JUDGE SIPPEL: In typed form. All right. All

into the counsel's word processor and that's the document we

the information provided to

JUDGE SIPPEL: And MS. Barr's information to you was

based on the documents that she testified to yesterday, the

Covington documents?

should note. MS. Barr typed up

counsel arrived in typed form. It was taken and transcribed

have, but it was taken and just transcribed from material that

she, she provided to us and she provided it to us in typed

form.

right. Well, as long as that was -- that's being worked on

and will be made available this morning, sometime before

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

'----- 15

16

17

18

19 MR. HOWARD: I'd be happy to produce them now, but

20 with the understanding, sir, that we're maintaining our

21 objection to producing them as work product.

22 JUDGE SIPPEL: As work product? You don't, you

23 don't see a basis for the -- you don't see a substantial need

24 for this information?

25 MR. HOWARD: Just that we're -- we understand you're

>.-...--"
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1 overruling that objection, Your Honor, but we're producing it

2 -- we're objecting to it as -- to preserve our privilege of --

T

3 JUDGE SIPPEL: All right. Okay. All right. Well,

4 that's -- so it's being, it's being produced under -- over

5 objection?

6

7

8

HR. HOWARD: Yes.

JUDGE SIPPEL: That's, that's acceptable.

HR. HOWARD: And the other thing, just as a

9 preliminary matter I did want to note that the -- to correct

10 the record in terms of counsel for Four Jacks stating that the

11 information from Ms. Covington -- that it was not disclosed to

12 counsel for Four Jacks that materials from Ms. Covington were

13 not available for production and, in fact, in our document

14 production of July 13, 1993 that is discussed •
.~_.

15

16

17

18

JUDGE SIPPEL: Is that in the cover letter?

HR. HOWARD: Yes.

JUDGE SIPPEL: July 13, okay. July 13, 1993.

HR. HOWARD: If, if necessary, we can, we can mark

19 it as an exhibit, but I -- as long as the record reflects that

20 it was provided.

21 JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, I'm sure that I -- somewhere in

22 my files I'm sure I have, I have a copy of it. You have it

23 noted as a copy to me.

24

25

HR. HOWARD: Yes, sir.

MS. SCHMELTZER: I'm sorry. What are you now giving
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1 us?

2

3

4

MR.. HOWARD: This is the material --

MS. SCHMELTZER: This is the material

MR.. HOWARD: that the judge ordered us to

5 produce, Ms. Covington's -- the material in the exhibit that

6 was taken from Ms. Covington's notes.

7

8 Honor.

9

MR. GREENEBAUM: It's the last paragraph, Your

JUDGE SIPPEL: All right. Well, the July 13th

10 letter certainly put Four Jacks on notice with respect to the

11 status of the situation, but I still feel that my ruling

12 yesterday is not altered by I still think that there is a

13 substantial need to see the formatted evidence that you've

14 turned over today. What I'm going to do is leave this up to

15 counsel for Four Jacks in terms of how you want to handle

16 this. You don't have to use it. Obviously you've got to do

17 some preparation with it, so I wouldn't expect you to use it

18 this morning. How many -- how much time do you have left with

19 Mrs. Barr -- Ms. Barr, can you tell me?

20 MS. SCHMELTZER: Quite a bit. I'm just trying to

21 decide whether it would be easier maybe just to take a few

22 minutes to look at this exhibit now because I'm going to be

23 cross-examining her on the attachment that these were used to

24 make. I mean, I'm sorry I didn't have them earlier or I would

25 have looked at them earlier.
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JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, we do have a witness here and

I'd like to keep moving. We will be taking a break at about

quarter-of-eleven and in the meantime perhaps your, your

associate counsel can

MS. SCHMELTZER: Well, you know, maybe I can kind of

try to do this as we go along.

JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, you're going to have to have

-- if you're going to introduce it as an exhibit

MS. SCHMELTZER: I know. I don't have copies.

JUDGE SIPPEL: -- then you're going to have to have

the copies.

MS. SCHMELTZER: I don't have copies.

JUDGE SIPPEL: It's going to have to be done the

right way.

MS. SCHMELTZER: Well, I --

JUDGE SIPPEL: If you want to

MS. SCHMELTZER: You know, to be perfectly honest

with you, it would be much more useful to be reviewing

Attachment E and this supplemental exhibit at the same time.

If you want to give us a few minutes, we could go down to Copy

General and make copies of this.

JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, I -- why can't you just leave

that statement and come back to it later like after lunch?

MS. SCHMELTZER: Or maybe Scripps Howard could send

somebody down to make copies?
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JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, I'm not going to ask -- I mean,

,--' 2 Scripps doesn't have to do that. They've given you the

3 information and it's under the circumstances I find it to

4 be in a timely fashion. This can all be taken up. Just use

5 the time after lunch to address this segment of her testimony

6 and we can get her moving on other areas today -- this

7 morning. Or you can use the time that -- they say we're going

8 to recess at about quarter-of-eleven. You can use that time.

9

10

MS. SCHMELTZER: Well, let's proceed then.

JUDGE SIPPEL: Yeah. I have -- the next item of

11 business that I have before the witness takes the stand is

12 with respect to that footnote 8 on Exhibit 3A and I find in

13 going back to the transcript of the session in, in OCtober,

14 admissions session, that I did specifically allow footnote 8

15 to remain in and, in fact, cross-referenced to paragraph 31 of

16 Mr. Kleiner'S testimony. I recall the distinction that I made

17 there is that Mr. Kleiner was testifying in a general way in

18 terms of how the -- how things were set up administratively

19 and he cross-referenced to footnote 8 and I specifically

20 allowed it in with his testimony. But since paragraph -- the

21 paragraph 42 of MS. Barr's testimony has been stricken, it

22 becomes irrelevant for her purposes. So it's in the record as

23 footnote 8, but only as testified to by Mr. Kleiner. That was

24 my rule, so that takes care of that question. The other

25 question that I'm still considering is with respect to Exhibit
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1 5, that is Four Jacks' Exhibit 5, and I find in going back to

2 the transcript on page 317 that the, the Bureau took the

3 position that you did have these -- well, let me start by

4 saying first of all that the witness identified these exhibits

5 in her -- the last page of her testimony at 3A in basically

6 the same terms as you have, you have captioned these letters,

7 that is as matters of, of criticism. But I -- so -- I mean,

8 to that extent I just wanted to point that out, that I've made

9 that observation. Then when we got into the discussion of, of

10 Attachment R or Tab R to Ms. Barr's testimony, there was some

11 discussion at page 315 on to about page 319 and, as I'm

12 reading it, the Bureau took the position that there, there

13 with respect to the, to the adverse letters, let me say

14 generally that what you characterized as adverse letters, that

15 Four Jacks could make what use it wants in the negative

16 letters so, I mean, it didn't seem to be an item of -- that

17 was an item of major contention at that particular time in

18 terms of how these were going to be used.

19 MR. ZAUNER: Your Honor, I think at that time we had

20 not seen the letters.

21 JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, I thought that you had because

22 the, the way the testimony reads all these letters were turned

23 over to the Bureau and to Four Jacks at the same time so that

24 there was a general familiarity with them. I don't want to

25 spend a lot of time on this, but I'm saying I will give a more
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1 definitive ruling before we leave here this week in terms of

2 how that evidence should be used, but I was kind of surprised

3 to see that the, the strenuous objections that were being made

4 yesterday--

5 MR. HOWARD: May I be heard, Your Honor, on what I

6 regard as an important distinction?

7 JUDGE SIPPEL: Yes, you may, but let me finish what

8 I'm saying. Now, there are some reference -- I did not make a

9 page by page analysis. I looked at more of what Ms.

10 Schmeltzer had proffered than at Attachment R. But there does

11 seem to be referenced in the letters that I've seen to

12 newscasting, not 100 percent. There are some letters in there

13 that really obviously don't have any relevance to anything

14 that's of a, of a public interest nature. Some of them are

15 very broad in terms of the quality and I would -- as I say, I

16 can, I can handle those in a different way. But there is -

17 from what I've seen there are references to newscasting and,

18 on the other hand, there are also references in the letters

19 that -- in Attachment R to newscasting in general.

MR. ZAUNER: -- that since we last met I took a look

MR. ZAUNER: Your Honor, I was going to mention

at the Metroplex case trying to see what it said on this

question and I also looked at some other cases, and I have to

tell you in all honesty I cannot -- I could not find a real

20

21

22

23

24

25

JUDGE SIPPEL: So yeah. Yes.
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1 bright line decision on this question. The Metroflex case at

2 one point says, "Both the Court and the Commission have

3 considered relevant any evidence of a station's reputation in

4 its community for good, as well as for bad," and that's a very

5 broad statement. But then it goes on and talks about public

any evidence of a station's reputation in its community, or

JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, I made the ruling back in, back

that I had this morning and was able to -- unable to find a

you in, in reaching a decision on this question.

is that part ofentertainment programming? Is that one of

witnesses from governmental, charitable, civic and business

organizations and mentioned that the station's public file

also held more than 90 letters of accolade received during the

government, religious and community service organizations.

What's missing from what the Review Board says is, is what do

we do with letters that may be critical of the station's

when they say any evidence are they limiting it to opinions

one year license term from local charitable, educational,

concerning the public affairs programming? The Metroflex

decision does not give the guidance that I had hoped to find

on that question. I tried to research it in the short time

definitive answer to the question. With Your Honor's

permission, I'd like to have an opportunity to, to look a

little further and see if I can find something that might help

in October 6 after hearing these positions on the record with

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14
~.

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 respect to the -- as this -- Mr. Goldstein has indicated in

2 the transcripts. Four Jacks can make what use it wants of the

3 negative letters. Now, I want to focus again more on this

4 distinction between letters of comment having to do with

5 amusement programming versus newsworthy type programs or

6 public service announcements and this type of thing. I want

7 to see if there's a basis -- that maybe there is a bright line

8 that I can draw that would permit a focus on relevance in

9 proposed findings to avoid -- well, to avoid getting into

10 judgmental questions about, you know, entertainment.

11 Obviously, I don't want to get into that. And there is some

12 help in the Fox TV decision. There is a whole section in here

13 that, that goes into this, this type of evidence and

14 reputation in the community. But it's -- it seems to be --

15 without negating the right of a, of a challenger to put in

16 such evidence, it doesn't define specifically what the, what

17 the -- what both sides mayor may not do. The focus of the

18 letters and the focus of the letters that were received in

19 evidence in that case are in the areas that you were talking

20 about. In other words, where the public interest obligation

21 of the station is being fulfilled as opposed to general

22 entertainment. So there may be some more work to be done on

23 this to make that kind of a distinction. I want to see some

24 more about what the letters say. But I think that my ruling

25 in general has been made and I don't intend to -- I haven't
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1 been shown anything in terms of the law that would prompt me

2 to, to reverse myself. Mr. Howard, did you want to say

3 something?

4 MR. HOWARD: I would urge that no reversal is

5 necessary, Your Honor, that the scope of your ruling was for

6 the letters that you deemed to be negative on page 319 of that

7 transcript, and again on the next page, "I'm going to give you

8 a deadline to get copies of those," what you characterize as

9 the negative letters, line 23 on page 320. Implicit in the -

10 explicit in that order, Your Honor, is that there would be a

11 determination by Four Jacks that these letters are relevant to

12 negative conclusion with respect to the licensee's reputation

13 in the community, and I think that that is the hurdle that we

14 urge that has not been met by just putting in all the other

15 letters that were in the file. MS. Barr's going to be subject

16 to cross-examination on how she feels that the letters that,

17 that Scripps Howard offered are a positive effect on that and

18 we, we make that as a proffer. These are letters that support

19 a -- our case that Four -- that Scripps Howard's station WMAR

20 has a positive reputation in the community. There is no such

21 proffer being made by the

22 letters into the record.

by Four Jacks in offering these

23 MS. SCHMELTZER: Your Honor, it's our position that

24 we don't have to make a threshold showing that these letters

25 are relevant. These are business records of the community.
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1 Mr. Howard didn't make a threshold showing that these letters

2 were relevant to reputation before offering them into

3 evidence. He offered them in as business records. And this

4 just completes the whole picture. He -- the exhibit that was

5 offered actually states that there were letters of criticism,

6 but Scripps Howard chose not to offer them. We think that

7 under the Federal Rules of Evidence we're entitled to present

8 -- have all the evidence presented.

9 JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, I say, I think that my ruling

10 on the -- my rulings on October the 6th are clear enough in

11 terms of anticipating that this -- that information of this

12 type was going to come in. Now it's -- and in the meantime

13 Mr. Zauner has raised a point with respect to the distinction

14 between entertainment -- letters with respect to

--- 15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

entertainment, which I agree are really irrelevant. I mean, I

don't want to spend time looking at letters on entertainment

commentary and letters that might be contra to -- are in the

category of public interest issues which would be contra to or

arguably could be contra to what has come in on behalf of

Scripps Howard. I mean -- and with respect to what the Review

Board has said to the extent that I can get down to, as Mr.

Zauner puts it, the bright line, it looks upon this tyPe of,

of evidence as relevant. You know, you get into weight.

Obviously, you don't have the, the authors of these letters in

here for cross-examination.
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3 but, nonetheless, it ties in -- where it ties in with the Fox

4 TV analysis that the Review Board did is that they tie it in

5 with the affidavits and it's kind of a pattern of consistency

6 that they're looking for. And to the extent that your letters

7 may undercut the consistency, there might be something there.

8 But, for example, on page -- as I say, I've just gone through

9 some of the beginning items here, but on your page 10279

10 there's a typewritten letter in there that I can't read it.

11 It's absolutely totally illegible. It isn't a question of

12 taking a good shot at it. The -- three-quarters of that

13 letter is totally illegible.

14

15

16

MS. SCHMELTZER: Well, we certainly don't

JUDGE SIPPEL: With my best glasses.

MS. SCHMELTZER: -- intend that you rely on

17 illegible letters.

18

19

JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, I mean --

MS. SCHMELTZER: I mean, some things were just not

20 turned over to us in very good shape.

21 JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, yes, but they weren't turned

22 over to me. You're the one that's turning them over to me.

23

24

25

This is obViously going to take me some time to get this done,

what I think to be done right, but it's going to be done

before we finish here.
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2 paragraph of that is -- of that letters is legible and that's

3 relevant.

4 JUDGE SIPPEL: Well -- but I can't just -- I -- the

5 whole letter has to be submitted in legible form under any,

6 under any rules of -- to me. I'm not going to spend anymore

7 time on this this morning, but you -- I want to let counsel

8 know and the parties know where I -- how I'm going to approach

9 this, and I will make a determination on this before the end

10 of the week. Some of this will be considered. I anticipate

11 some of this will -- some of your Exhibit 5 materials will be

12 considered, but -- and I don't intend to delineate every

13 single item that you can't use, but there is going to -- I am

14 going to set a standard and those are the items that I expect

15 to see in proposed findings.

16 MS. SCHMELTZER: Then will that standard apply to

17 Scripps Howard's letters, as well?

18 JUDGE SIPPEL: Scripps Howard's letters are --

19 insofar as, as they'll be -- yes, insofar as letters that are

20 in the Scripps Howard attachment are -- which are not related

21 to their public interest obligation. In other words, if

22

23

24

25

there's any letters in there that are commendatory of your

entertainment programming, that same limitation would apply.

And all that I'm saying is that with respect to your proposed

findings I don't want those kinds of letters cited as
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1 authority or as -- in support of your propositions, your

2 respective propositions, with respect to those letter.

3 MR. HOWARD: CODDllunity service, I would think, Your

4 Honor.

determination?

EMILY LOUISE BARR

JUDGE SIPPEL: Anything that's in there, that's

Whereupon,

read a little bit more of what the

JUDGE SIPPEL: Community Services, yes.

MR. HOWARD: Anything that's relevant to the, to the

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MS. SCHMELTZER:

Good morning, Ms. Barr.Q

exactly right, that's non-coDDllercial, that's non

entertainment, is grist for the issues. But, as I say, I want

to see a little bit more

Review Board has written and perhaps I can delineate the

standard so that I'm satisfied with it. All right. That's

I still don't have a, a witness on the stand. I'm going to

get back to your proposed Four Jacks Exhibit 13 at a later

time. I just don't want to take time discussing it any

further right now. Ms. Barr, would you take the stand,

please?

was called as a witness and, having previously been duly

sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

5
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8
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1

2

A

Q

Good morning.

I'd like to talk to you about the effort that you

A Okay.

A Other than the calendars, that's correct.

Q Yeah. In 1992 did you have anything that reflected

A 1992?

had mentioned, did you?

Q Now, I take it you didn't have anything from anyone

at the station writing up a list of leaders that they had

contacted which included a list of issues that those leaders

ascertainment interviews, the leaders contacted and the issues

they discussed in -- from 1991?

A Not until I asked them for it. I did not have

anything prior to my gathering the information.

Q You didn't have any, you didn't have any

documentation that was contemporaneous with the May 30 to

September 3, 1991 renewal period listing leader, issues and

the person that conducted the interview? Correct?

3 went through in 1992 to document the interviews or the

ascertainment that was done in 1991. Okay?

Q And the calendars, all that the calendars listed was

that a person had a meeting at 2:00 p.m. with -- the person at

23 the station had a meeting at 2:00 with another person?

24 Correct?

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14
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16

17

18
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22

25 A That's correct.
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o You -- so you -- did you in 1992 ask Mr. Kleiner for

A Yes, I did.

o And where was the calendar when you asked him for

A Yes, I did.

o Did you ask Maria velleggia for her calendar?

A Yes.

A It was kept in his office, yes.

o So he gave you the calendar?

his calendar?

it? Was that in his possession?

Q And she gave you her calendar?

A She gave me a copy of her calendar.

o Was Marie Velleggia working at the station for the

14 whole period from May 30, 1991 to September 3, 1991?

1

-~. 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

15

16

17

A

Q

A

Yes, she was.

When did she start working at WMAR-TV?

She started before I got there and I got there in

18 1988, so she was there prior to that time.

19 Q And I gather you asked other staff for the -- did

20 you ask other staff for their calendars?

21 A Yes, I did.

22 Q But there was nothing in their calendars that you

23 used? Is that correct?

24 A The other people that I asked had not retained their

25 they were not in the habit of saving their past calendars.

~.
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2 you could use? Is that correct?

3

4

A

Q

That's correct.

Now, once you gathered -- and did you call Janet

5 Covington in 1992?

6

7

8

9

A

Q

A

Q

Yes, I did.

You asked for her calendar?

Yes, I did.

And that was when she told you that you wouldn't be

10 able to read it so she would make some notes for you?

11 A well, she first asked me why I wanted it and I

--...

12 explained to her that I was looking for background information

13 on people she had done ascertainment interviews with and that

14 her calendar would, would -- I asked her if her calendar would

15 help her recollect who she had spoken with. She said yes, it

16 would and why don't -- she offered to make the notes for me.

17 She said why don't I, why don't I go through my calendar for

18 that four months and write down for you who I met with, when I

19 met with them and so forth?

20 Q Did you ever personally see Ms. Covington's

21 calendar?

22 A I have seen it in the past. I did not see it in

23 1992.

than her calendar to make her notes?

24

25

Q Do you know if Ms. Covington used anything other
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A To the best of my knowledge, no.

0 Do you know if her calendar reflected any issues

that she had discussed with individual leaders?

A She had a general habit, as I recall, of writing

down not only the name of the person she was meeting with, but

6 writing down, for example, homelessness or Fuel Fund or, you

7 know, something that would to her signify what the meeting was

8 going to be about or what the general -- she didn't write down

9 long sentences. She would write key words.

10 o But -- and you're basing that upon seeing her

11 calendar prior to 19911

12 A Prior to -- during 1991 when she still worked at the

13 station.

14

15

o
A

You went in and looked at her calendar?

Well, she and I -- her office was right next to mine

16 and we met several times a day every day. It was not unusual

17 for her to be sitting in my office with her calendar on her

18 lap opened up and discussing with me things that had been

19 going on, and I could see her calendar. It wasn't that I was

20 snooping.

21

22

o
A

But you weren't actually reading her calendar?

No, but I, I -- it was not uncommon for me to be

23 looking at her calendar, either sitting side by side or across

24 from her.

25 o So the notes that she gave you in -- to the best of

FREE STATE REPORTING, INC.
COurt Reporting Depositions

D.C. Area (301) 261-1902
BaIt. & Annap. (410) 974-0947



661

1 your knowledge, the notes that she gave you in 1992 were

2 things from her calendar? Correct?

3

4

5

A

Q

A

um-hum.

Did she embellish upon that at all, do you know?

I assume -- I presume that she did because she,

6 because she gave to me information with respect to who she met

7 with and what they discussed.

8 Q How, how bulky were these notes? How many pages

9 approximately?

10 A They were only maybe, as I recall, three legal-sized

11 sheets of yellow paper on -- written on both sides.

12 Q And this covered the period May 30, 1991 through

Yes.

Is that correct?

A

Q

13 what, through what date?

A I believe it was September 30, 1991.

Q Now, when you got all of this material together did

you sit down with any other members of the station staff?

A I sat down with Maria Velleggia personally and I sat

down with Arnie Kleiner personally after getting their

calendars. What I -- the way it worked was I first went

through and organized by date what meetings had taken place,

so I simply made a log for myself of --

Q And you did that by going through your calendar, Mr.

Kleiner's calendar, Ms. Velleggia's calendar?
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And Ms. Covington's notes.

MS. SCHMELTZER: For the record, Your Honor, I think

3 it would be useful to have the other calendars in the record.

4 We have Ms. Barr's. I'd like to introduce Mr. Kleiner's and

5 Ms. Velleggia's.

6 JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, is it necessary to ask this

7 witness about those calendars or you just to introduce them?

8 MS. SCHMELTZER: Well, this is the material she

9 reviewed in putting together her attachment.

10 JUDGE SIPPEL: All right. Well, you want to

11 introduce them through her. I see.

12 MS. SCHMELTZER: Yeah.

13

14

JUDGE SIPPEL: Let's have them marked.

MS. SCHMELTZER: Okay. The first one has a black

15 cover, as you can see. This will be Four Jacks Exhibit 15, I

16 believe it is. Is that correct?

17

18 My count

19

20

21

JUDGE SIPPEL: I'll tell you in a minute my count.

MS. SCHMELTZER: 16.

JUDGE SIPPEL: -- says this to be 16.

MS. SCHMELTZER: 16. And this is the 1991

22 Professional Appointments Calendar of Arnold J. Kleiner.

23 JUDGE SIPPEL: Okay. The reporter will so mark that

24 as 16 for identification.

25 (The document that was referred to as
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'-...-.• '

1

2

3

Four Jacks Exhibit No. 16 was marked

for identification.)

MS. SCHMELTZER: This is the period -- Your Honor,

4 May 30 to September 30, 1991 is covered by this calendar. And

5 next I'd like to have marked for identification as Four Jacks

BY MS. SCHMELTZER:

(The document that was referred to as

Four Jacks Exhibit No. 17 was marked

Q -- Ms. Covington's notes?

A Yes.

for identification.

MS. SCHMELTZER: That this is the calendar of Maria

Q All right. Now, Ms. Barr, with your calendar and

17.

JUDGE SIPPEL: All right. The reporter will so

identify that document. Mark it for identification as Exhibit

Velleggia.

Hr. Kleiner's calendar, MS. velleggia's calendar, those are

the documents that you reviewed in 1992 along with --

A Along with the notes.

Q And what did you -- did you, did you have -- were

you the only person that worked on this exhibit or were there

6 Exhibit 17 the 1991 Daily Planning Diary of -- it says

7 velleggia-Tilley.

WITNESS: Yeah. That's two last names.8
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